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(CIN: L65922MH1989PLC054583)
th Floor, 14, Jamshedji Tata Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020, India

Tel No. +91 22 2285 1765/1766/2285 3866 /Email: corporate@gichf.com/investors@gichf.com/

NOTICE
28th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of GIC HOUSING FINANCE LTD. 
will be held on nd  at 3.30 p.m at Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan Mumbai, Chavan Centre, 
Cultural Hall, 4th Floor, General Jagannath Bhosale Marg, Mumbai-400 021 to transact the following business(es):

st

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 together 
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

st

st March, 2018.

To re-appoint a Director in place of Shri K. Sanath Kumar (DIN 03444096) due to retire by rotation is not seeking re-
election due to superannuation.

To ratify the appointment of M/s. CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm Registration No. 

up to the conclusion of 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors of the 

Ordinary 

 (DIN 02921377) who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company 
th August 2017, and who holds 

th Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is 
eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under 

rotation.”

Ordinary 

“RESOLVED THAT Shri NSR Chandra Prasad (DIN 01386757) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
th October, 2017 

Companies Act, 2013 and is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 

Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company up to the conclusion 
of 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and such other applicable 



528th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

Shri V. Ramasamy (DIN No. 00490988), who is eligible for re-appointment for 2nd term and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing 

upto the conclusion of 30th AGM, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and such other applicable 

Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey (DIN No. 00059620), who is eligible for re-appointment for 2nd term and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing 

upto the conclusion of 30th AGM, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and such other applicable 

Smt. Mona Bhide (DIN No. 05203026), who is eligible for re-appointment for 2nd term and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing 

upto the conclusion of 30th AGM, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Resolution dated 24th July, 2017 passed by the Shareholders in the previous 
year Annual General Meeting, consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company including 
any Committee thereof for the time being, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 

thereof and Article 66, 67 and 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company to borrow money either in rupees or in 
such other foreign currencies, as may be permitted by law from time to time, as and when required, from Commercial 
Banks, Co-operative Banks, Financial Institutions, Mutual Funds, Public Financial Institutions, National Housing Bank, 
Promoters, Foreign Financial Institutions, Provident Fund Trusts, Pension Funds or from any other person(s) or entities 
as Term Loans, through issue of Commercial Paper, Masala Bonds, External Commercial Borrowings, through issue of 
secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis which together with monies already 
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Bankers of the Company in the ordinary 
course of the business) shall not exceed in the aggregate at any one time beyond ` 

 irrespective of the fact such aggregate amount of borrowing outstanding at any one time 
may exceed the aggregate for the time being of the paid up capital of the Company, its free reserve (reserve not set 

“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the Company be and is hereby granted in terms of Section 180(1)(a) of Companies 

the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to all other necessary approvals to the Board to secure, for 
creation of mortgage or charge on all or any of the Company’s immovable and/or movable assets, both present and 

said Borrowings.”

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 
Securities) Rules 2014, as may be amended from time to time, SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities ) Regulations, 
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Housing Finance Companies Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on a Private Placement basis (NHB) Directions, 
2014 and subject to other applicable regulations/guidelines, consent of the Members of the Company, be and is 

Bonds of ̀   in one or more series/tranches on a private placement 

during a period of 1 (One) year from the date of passing this Resolution which is within the overall limits of the 
Company as approved by Members from time to time.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized or authorize any person to do all acts, deeds and 

`

“RESOLVED THAT approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into agreement(s) 
/ transaction(s) with Related Parties (namely General Insurance Corporation of India, The New India Assurance 
Company Ltd., Oriental Insurance Company Ltd., United India Insurance Company Ltd. and National Insurance 
Company Ltd.), in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length basis for the purpose of raising funds through NCDs 
/ Bonds, to take property/properties on lease / rent, to avail / render any services or any other kind of transactions 
which construe to be Related Party Transactions up to an aggregate limit of ` 1,000 crores till the conclusion of 29th 
AGM from the date of this Resolution including the transaction(s) already entered into with such party / parties.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things 
and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers 

Place : Mumbai
Date :24.04.2018

National Insurance Building,
6th Floor, 14, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate, 
Mumbai-400020

Sd/-
S. Sridharan

ROAD MAP FOR 28th AGM VENUE
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FORM IS SENT WITH ANNUAL REPORT.

BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of item Nos. 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9, 10, 11, 12 & 13 is given below and forms part of the Notice.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 24th July, 
2018 to Thursday, 2nd August, 2018 (both days inclusive) in connection with the Annual General Meeting and for 
the purpose of payment of dividend for the year 2017-18.

5. The dividend as recommended by the Board, if declared at the meeting, will be paid to those Members:

share transfers in physical form lodged with the Company/ Registrar and Transfer agent on or before 23rd 
July, 2018 (Monday), and

rd July, 2018 furnished 
by National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) for this 
purpose.

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all Companies to use the bank 
account details furnished by the Depositories for depositing dividend. Dividend will be credited to the Members’ 
Bank Account through NECS wherever complete core banking details are available with the Company. In cases 
where the core banking details are not available, dividend warrants will be issued to the Members with bank 
details printed thereon as available in the Company’s records.

 Members are requested to fill, sign and send the ECS mandate form, which forms part of this Annual Report, 
along with a photocopy of the cheque issued by the bank for verifying the accuracy of the MICR Code number to 
the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz. 

 (in case of Members holding shares in physical 
form) and to the respective Depository participants (in case of Members holding shares in dematerialised form).

8. Members attending the Annual General Meeting are requested to bring the following for admission to the meeting 
hall (as applicable).

 a) Attendance Slip duly completed and signed as per the specimen signature lodged with the Company.

 b) Members holding shares in dematerialized form, their DP and Client ID number(s).

 c) Members holding shares in physical form, their folio number(s).

 d) Copy of the Annual Report (2017-18).

 The Company would accept only the Attendance Slip from a Member actually attending the Meeting; or from the 
person attending as a Proxy under a valid proxy form registered with the Company not less than 48 hours prior 
to the Meeting. Attendance Slip of Members not personally present at the meeting and Proxy Forms, which are 
invalid, will not be accepted.

 Member Companies or Organisations are requested to send a copy of the resolution of their governing body 
authorising their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in their address along 
with address proof, i.e. Electric/ Telephone Bill, Driving License or a copy of the Passport and bank particulars 
to the Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and in case their shares are in dematerialised form, this 
information should be passed on directly to their respective Depository Participants and not to the Company/ 
RTA.
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 In all correspondence with the Company, members are requested to quote their account/ folio numbers and in 
case their shares are held in the dematerialised form, they must quote their DP ID. and Client ID. No(s).

 In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, nomination facility is available to an individual Member. 
Members holding shares in physical form may utilise the nomination facility available by sending the prescribed 
Form No.SH-13 duly filled, to our Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz.  
Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Hyderabad-500032. Members holding shares 
in dematerialised form has to send their “nomination” request to the respective Depository Participants.

 Equity Shares of the Company are under compulsory Demat trading by all investors. Those Members, who have 
not dematerialised the shares, are advised to dematerialise their shareholding, to avoid inconvenience in future.

 SEBI vide circular ref. no. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2007 dated 27th April, 2007 made Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
mandatory for all securities market transaction. Thereafter, vide circular no. MRD/Dop/Cir-05/2009 dated 20th 
May, 2009 it was clarified that for securities market transactions and off market/ private transaction involving 
transfer of shares in physical form of listed Companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish 
copy of PAN Card to the Company/ RTAs for registration of such transfer of shares.

 a) Deletion of name of the deceased Member(s), where the shares are held in the name of two or more 
Member(s).

 b) Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased Member was the sole holder of shares.

 c) Transposition of shares when there is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are held 
jointly in the names of two or more Members.

 Investors/ Members are requested to kindly note that if physical documents viz. Demat Request Form (DRF) and 
Share Certificates etc… are not received from their DPs by the Registrar within a period of 15 days from the date 
of generation of the DRN for dematerialisation, the DRN will be treated as rejected/ cancelled. This step is being 
taken on the advice of Depository viz. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Ltd. (CDSL) so that no demat request remains pending beyond a period of 21 days. Upon rejection/ 
cancellation of the DRN, a fresh DRF with new DRN has to be forwarded along with the share certificates by the 
DPs to the Registrar. This note is only to advise investors/ Members that they should ensure that their DP’s do 
not delay in sending the DRF and share certificates to the Registrar after generating the DRN.

 Dividend for the financial year 2010-11 which remains unclaimed, will be due for transfer to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central Government, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in the month of September, 2018. Members, who have not yet encashed their 
dividend for the financial year 2010-11, are requested to lodge their claims with the Company or M/s. Karvy 
Computershare Pvt. Ltd. (RTA) without delay. During the year 2017-18, the Company has deposited a sum of 
Rs. 12,65,103/- (Rupees Twelve Lacs Sixty Five Thousand One Hundred and Three only) to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund of the Central Government, on account of unclaimed/ unpaid dividend for the year 2009-10.

 Those Members who have not encashed or received their dividend for the financial years 2010-11 to 2016-17 are 
requested to approach our Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz.  Karvy 
Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Hyderabad-500032.

 The Members holding shares in more than one folio are requested to consolidate their folios by sending a request 
letter to the Company or to the Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company. Consolidation of folios would 
facilitate one-stop tracking of all corporate benefits and would reduce time and effort required for monitoring 
multiple folios. Consolidation of share certificates also helps in saving costs in case of dematerialisation and also 
provides convenience in holding shares physically.

 A brief profile of the Directors seeking appointment and/or re-appointment is furnished and forming part of the 
notice as per Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

 The annual report of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company, will be made available on the 
Company’s website at 
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22. All Documents referred to the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all 
working days between 10.30 a.m. to 12.00 noon up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

  Company is sending physical copies of the Annual Report including Notice of the 28th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company inter alia  along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form in the permitted mode to all the Members of the Company. Additionally, electronic copy of the Annual 
Report for the financial year 2017-18 is also being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with 
the Company/ Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes.

24. In terms of the provisions of Section 107 of the Companies Act, 2013, since the resolutions as set out in this 
Notice are being conducted through e-voting and ballot paper, the said resolutions will not be decided on a show 
of hands at the AGM.

25.  

 a) In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015 and Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rule 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 

right to vote on all matters listed in this Notice of 28th AGM by electronic means and the business may be 
transacted through e-voting services. The members who do not have access to e-voting facility shall be 
given Ballot form also from the Company for casting votes. The facility of casting votes by the members 
using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (‘remote e-voting’) will be 
provided by Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd. (Karvy).

 b) The facility for voting through ballot paper only shall be made available at the AGM venue also and the 
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote either by remote e-voting or by ballot form, 
shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

  The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

 d) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently.

 e)

  The instructions for e-voting are as under:

 

   (i) Open your web browser during the voting period and navigate to https://evoting.karvy.com

   (ii) Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password) which will be sent you separately. Your Folio 
No./DP ID – Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already registered with Karvy for 
e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting your vote. If required, please 
visit https://evoting.karvy.com

   (iii)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

   (iv)  You will now reach password change menu wherein they are required to mandatorily change your 

consisting of at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a 
special character (like *, #, @, etc.). The system will prompt you to change your password and 

a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is 
strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you 

   (v) You need to login again with the new credentials.
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   (vi) On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event Number for GIC 
Housing Finance Limited.

   (vii) On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the 

and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together should not 

and the shares held will not be counted under either head.

   (viii) Members holding shares under multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process 
separately for each of the folios/demat accounts.

   (ix) Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your 

   (x) You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

   (xii) Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRIs, etc.) are also required 

together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the 
Scrutinizer at e-mail ID:  with a copy to evoting@karvy.com. They may also 
upload the same in the e-voting module in their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned 
documents should be in the naming format “GIC Housing Finance Limited  _3791.”

  

   i) Initial password is provided in below format at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM :

USER ID PASS WORD

   ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above to cast vote.

 g) In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s section available at Karvy’s website 
https://evoting.karvy.com.

 h) If the member is already registered with Karvy e-voting platform then he/she can use his/her existing User 
ID and password for casting the vote through remote e-voting.

 i) As the Voting would be through electronic means, the members who do not have access to e-voting, are 

Scrutinizer in the enclosed self - addressed Prepaid Postage Business Envelope Reply.

 j) Postage Charges will be borne by the Company. However, in case a Member sends the Ballot Form by courier 
or registered post or delivers it in person at his expenses, such Ballot Form will also be accepted.

 k) Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms shall be rejected.

 l) The ballot must be received by the Scrutinizer on or before (Friday) 27th July, 2018 (5.00 pm). The Scrutinizers 

system or through Ballot only and in no other form. In the event, a member casts his votes through both the 
processes, the votes in the electronic system would be considered and the ballot vote would be ignored.

used for sending future communication(s).

 n) The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, 30th July, 2018 (at 9.00 a.m.) and ends on Wednesday, 1st 
August, 2018 (at 5.00 p.m.). During this period Members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
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form or in dematerialized form may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
Karvy for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be 
allowed to change it subsequently.

 o) The Voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 
rd July, 2018 (Monday). A person whose name is recorded in the 

only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through Ballot 
Paper.

 p) Shri Makarand Joshi of M/s Makarand M. Joshi & Co. has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
voting by ballot paper and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of atleast two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make not later than three days of the conclusion 
of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairperson or a person authorized by her in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result 
of the voting therewith.

 r) The Results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Website of the Company www.
 after the declaration of result by the Chairperson or a person authorized by her in writing 

and also the same will be communicated to the NSE and BSE Limited.
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 (DIN 02921377), MBA, AII, is appointed as Chairman cum Managing Director of The Oriental 
Insurance Company Ltd. w.e.f. 31st

CMD of National Insurance Company Ltd. and United India Insurance Company Ltd.

parts of the Country including a stint in Saudi Insurance. Shri Girijakumar is having more than three decades of rich 
and vast experience in the Non – Life Insurance Industry. He has also served in the Board of ITC Limited from 19th 
March, 2010 to 23rd July, 2016.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a Member as per section 160 of Companies Act, 2013 proposing 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested in this 
resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 5 for the approval of the Members.

Shri NSR Chandra Prasad (DIN 01386757), a Commerce Graduate and Fellow of Insurance Institute of India, is the ex 

1978 – June 1979 in GIC Re). After his induction training in GIC Re, he joined New India Assurance Company where he 

CEO of Prestige Assurance PLC, Lagos from June 2002 to March, 2006.

Shri NSR Chandra Prasad possess 36 years of rich experience of service in non-life insurance sector where he held 
number of key positions in Marketing operations, Technical, Reinsurance, Customer Redressal, Personnel & Training 
both in India and Overseas.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a Member as per section 160 of Companies Act, 2013 proposing 

30th Annual General Meeting. Your Independent Director meets all the criteria of Independence as provided in section 
149(6) of Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested in this 
resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 6 for the approval of the Members.

Shri V. Ramasamy (DIN No. 00490988) Chartered Accountant by Profession, joined United India Insurance Co. Ltd as 

promoted to the cadre of Chairman cum Managing Director.

He joined National Insurance Co. Ltd as Chairman cum Managing Director from October 2005 to May 2009. After his 
retirement, he was appointed as Insurance Ombudsman Tamilnadu for Three Years from August 2009.

Shri V. Ramasamy was appointed as Additional Director (Independent Director) by the Board on 17th September, 
2013 and his appointment as Independent Director was also approved by the shareholders in the 24th Annual General 
Meeting. The current term of Shri V. Ramasamy is upto 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolution 
by the Company for another term of Five years.
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In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of the rich experience, continued 
valuable guidance to the Management, it is proposed to re-appoint him for second term as an Independent Director 
on the Board up to the conclusion of 30th AGM of the Company.

Your Director meets all the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except Shri V. Ramasamy, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their 
relatives is, in anyway concerned or interested in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 7 for the approval of the Members.

(DIN 00059620), B. Com. from the University of Mumbai and Chartered Accountant, has 30 
years of Experience in Accounting & Finance, Taxation and Corporate Advisory Services. He is Member of Independent 
Management Advisory Committee (IMAC) of International Telecommunication Union (ITU), Geneva, Switzerland, 
Appellate Authority constituted under Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, Income Computation & Disclosure Standards 
Committee of CBDT and National Advisory Board Manav Sadhan Sanstha.

He was elected as the President of ICAI during 2005-06 and also as Vice President of ICAI during 2004-05. He has been 
an elected Member of the Central Council of the ICAI from 1998 to 2007. Thereafter he has been the President of 

07. He was a Board Member of the International Federation of Accountants from 2005-08. He has been associated 
with M/s Khimji Kunverji & Co. as a Senior Partner since 1982. He has served as a Member of various advisory and 
expert committees at National and International Levels, including as a Member of the Steering Committee for 
comprehensive review of Governance and Oversight within the United Nations.

Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey was appointed as Additional Director (Independent Director) by the Board on 17th September, 
2013 and his appointment as Independent Director was also approved by the shareholders in the 24th Annual General 
Meeting. The current term of Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey is upto 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolution 
by the Company for another term of Five years.

In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of the rich experience, continued 
valuable guidance to the Management, it is proposed to re-appoint him for second term as an Independent Director 
on the Board up to the conclusion of 30th AGM of the Company.

Your Director meets all the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
including their relatives is, in anyway concerned or interested in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 8 for the approval of the Members.

Smt. Mona Bhide (DIN 05203026), B. Com, LL.B. from University of Mumbai, LL.M. from Northwestern University, 
School of Law, Chicago is a Managing Partner of Dave & Girish & Co., a Law Firm focusing on International Finance 
and Corporate Laws. She is also Advisor to various Banks and Financial Institutions.

She is the Member of Bar Council of Maharashtra and Goa, Bombay Bar Association, International Swaps and 

legal profession and also worked with International Law Firm, Sedwick, Deetert Moran and Arnold.

She is one of the highly recommended lawyers for Project Finance & Corporate, Mergers & Acquisitions transactions, 
restructuring and insolvency practitioner and corporate transactions practitioner in India in Global Counsel 3000.
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She has been ranked as a Leading Individual in Banking & Finance, Corporate, Mergers & Acquisitions and Dispute 

Smt. Mona Bhide was appointed as Additional Director (Independent Director) by the Board on 17th September, 2013 
and her appointment as Independent Director was also approved by the shareholders in the 24th Annual General 
Meeting. The current term of Smt. Mona Bhide is upto 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolution 
by the Company for another term of Five years.

In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of the rich experience, continued 
valuable guidance to the Management, it is proposed to re-appoint her for second term as an Independent Director 
on the Board up to the conclusion of 30th AGM of the Company.

Your Director meets all the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except Smt. Mona Bhide, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their 
relatives is, in anyway concerned or interested in the Resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No.9 for the approval of the Members.

Vide Special resolution dated 24th July, 2017, passed by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, the Members 
of the Company had accorded their consent to the Board of Directors to borrow any sum or sums of monies for the 
purposes of the Company not exceeding ` 12,500 crores (Rupees Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) (apart 
from temporary loans obtained/ to be obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) in 
terms of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. Taking into account the business plans of the Company, the 
Board of Directors may need to resort to further borrowings from time to time and hence it is proposed to revise 
the said limit upwards to `  A fresh resolution is proposed 
authorising the Board of Directors to borrow any sum or sums of monies for the purposes of the company not 
exceeding `  (apart from temporary loans obtained/ to be 
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

These borrowings may also have to be secured by creation of mortgages, charges, liens, hypothecation and/ or 
other securities of the Company’s assets and properties, both present and future, whether movable or immovable, 
including the whole or substantially the whole of the Company’s undertaking or undertakings, in favour of banks/ 

mortgages, charges, liens, hypothecation and/ or other securities together with the existing mortgages, charges, 
liens, hypothecation and/ or other securities may exceed the limit of Rs.12,500 crores (Rupees Twelve Thousand Five 
Hundred Crores Only), Members’ approval is sought for increasing the limit upto 

 and for authorising the Board of Directors to create security by way of mortgages, charges, 
liens, hypothecation and/or other securities of the Company’s assets and properties, both present and future, 
whether movable or immovable, including the whole or substantially the whole of the Company’s undertaking or 

being proposed for consideration of the Members under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, concerned or interested in 
this resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 10 & 11 for the approval of the Members.

ITEM NO.

Invitation to subscribe to Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) / bonds on a Private Placement basis, is 

such Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds during the year.
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Accordingly, seeing the long term borrowing requirement of the Company and to augment resources at a cheaper 
rate of interest, approval is sought to mobilize some more funds by way of issue of Redeemable NCDs/Bonds on 
private placement basis. Hence we are seeking approval for issue of Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 
/ bonds on a Private Placement basis, for amount of ` 1,000 crores which is within the overall limits of the Company 
as approved by Members from time to time.”

Accordingly, the approval of Members is being sought by way of Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act, read with Rules made there under, in the manner as set out in Item No. 12 of this Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, concerned or interested in 
this resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 12 for the approval of the Members.

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the transactions in the nature of raising of funds through NCDs/
Bonds, taking property on lease/rent, availing of services in the ordinary course of business or any other kind of 
transactions entered into by the Company up to an aggregate limit of ` 1,000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores 
Only) which though in the ordinary course of business may be construed to be related party transactions with the 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, concerned or interested in 
this resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 13 for the approval of the Members.

Place : Mumbai

Date :24.04.2018

National Insurance Building,

6th Floor, 14, Jamshedji Tata Road, Sd/-

Churchgate, S. Sridharan

Mumbai-400020
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 Shri A. V. Girijakumar, MBA, AII, is appointed as Chairman cum Managing Director of The Oriental Insurance 
Company Ltd. w.e.f. 31st May, 2017. Prior to this, he was Director & General Manager and also Officiating CMD of 
National Insurance Company Ltd. and United India Insurance Company Ltd.

 Shri A. V. Girijakumar joined New India Assurance Company as a Direct Recruit Officer in 1980 and served in 
various parts of the Country including a stint in Saudi Insurance. Shri Girijakumar is having more than three 
decades of rich and vast experience in the Non – Life Insurance Industry. He has also served in the Board of ITC 
Limited from 19th March, 2010 to 23rd July, 2016.

 The other Directorships/ Committee memberships of Shri Girijakumar are as follows:

Name of the Company Board Membership Committee Membership

The Oriental Insurance Company Ltd. Chairman cum Managing Director · CSR Committee – Chairman

Health Insurance TPA of India Ltd. Director --

Agriculture Insurance Company of 
India Ltd.

Director --

  Shri A. V. Girijakumar does not hold any share in the Company.

 Shri NSR Chandra Prasad, a Commerce Graduate and Fellow of Insurance Institute of India, is the ex-CMD of 
National Insurance Company Ltd. He is a Direct Recruit Officer of1978 batch (12 months training from June 1978 
– June 1979 in GIC Re). After his induction training in GIC Re, he joined New India Assurance Company where he 
served various Departments in different capacities. Shri NSR Chandra Prasad was appointed as Managing Director 
& CEO of Prestige Assurance PLC, Lagos from June 2002 to March, 2006.

 Shri NSR Chandra Prasad possess 36 years of rich experience of service in non-life insurance sector where he 
held number of key positions in Marketing operations, Technical, Reinsurance, Customer Redressal, Personnel & 
Training both in India and Overseas.

 The other Directorships/ Committee memberships of Shri NSR Chandra Prasad are as follows:

Name of the Company Board Membership Committee Membership

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance 
Company Limited

Director · Audit Committee – Member

Kshema Holdings Pvt. Ltd. Director --

 Shri NSR Chandra Prasad does not hold any share in the Company.

 Shri V. Ramasamy, Chartered Accountant by Profession, joined United India Insurance Co. Ltd as a Direct Recruit 
Officer in the year 1975. During his tenure, he had worked in various capacities and in 2005, he was promoted 
to the cadre of Chairman cum Managing Director.

 He joined National Insurance Co. Ltd as Chairman cum Managing Director from October 2005 to May 2009. After 
his retirement, he was appointed as Insurance Ombudsman Tamilnadu for Three Years from August 2009.
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 The other Directorships/ Committee memberships of Shri V. Ramasamy are as follows:

Name of the Company Board Membership Committee Membership

General Insurance Corporation of India DIRECTOR · Audit Committee – Chairman

 Shri V. Ramasamy does not hold any share in the Company.

  (DIN 00059620), B. Com. from the University of Mumbai, Chartered Accountant has 
30 years of Experience in Accounting & Finance, Taxation and Corporate Advisory Services. He is Member of 
Independent Management Advisory Committee (IMAC) of International Telecommunication Union (ITU), Geneva, 
Switzerland, Appellate Authority constituted under Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, Income Computation & 
Disclosure Standards Committee of CBDT and National Advisory Board Manav Sadhan Sanstha.

 He was elected as the President of ICAI during 2005-06 and also as Vice President of ICAI during 2004-05. He 
has been an elected Member of the Central Council of the ICAI from 1998 to 2007. Thereafter he has been the 
President of Confederation of Asian & Pacific Accountants (CAPA) during 2007-09 and was Deputy President of 
CAPA during 2005-07. He was a Board Member of the International Federation of Accountants from 2005-08. He 
has been associated with M/s Khimji Kunverji & Co. as a Senior Partner since 1982. He has served as a Member 
of various advisory and expert committees at National and International Levels, including as a Member of the 
Steering Committee for comprehensive review of Governance and Oversight within the United Nations.

 The other Directorships/ Committee memberships of Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey are as follows:

Name of the Company Board Membership Committee Membership

Navneet Education Limited DIRECTOR · Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee - Member

Tribhovandas Bhimji Zaveri Limited DIRECTOR · Audit Committee – Chairman

 Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee - Member

Container Corporation of India Limited DIRECTOR · Audit Committee-Chairman

· CSR Committee – Member

Man Infraconstruction Limited DIRECTOR · Audit Committee – Member

Apcotex Industries Limited DIRECTOR · Audit Committee – Chairman

 Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee - Member

Electrotherm Renewables Private Limited DIRECTOR ----

Palace Solar Energy Private Limited DIRECTOR · Audit Committee – Member

· Nomination and Remuneration  
Committee – Member

· CSR Committee - Member

 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey does not hold any share in the Company.

 Smt. Mona Bhide, B. Com, LL.B. from University of Mumbai, LL.M. from Northwestern University, School of 
Law, Chicago is a Managing Partner of Dave & Girish & Co., a Law Firm focusing on International Finance and 
Corporate Laws. She is also Advisor to various Banks and Financial Institutions.

 She is the Member of Bar Council of Maharashtra and Goa, Bombay Bar Association, International Swaps 
and Derivatives Association, International Bar Association, New York State Bar Association, Inter Pacific Bar 
Association and Asia Pacific Loan Market Association.
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 She had worked with American Bar Foundation in the field of Investment Banking, conflicts and globalization of 
the legal profession and also worked with International Law Firm, Sedwick, Deetert Moran and Arnold.

 She is one of the highly recommended lawyers for Project Finance & Corporate, Mergers & Acquisitions 
transactions, restructuring and insolvency practitioner and corporate transactions practitioner in India in Global 
Counsel 3000.

 She has been ranked as a Leading Individual in Banking & Finance, Corporate, Mergers & Acquisitions and Dispute 
Resolution by Legal 500 and as Leading Lawyer by Asia law Profiles.

 The other Directorships/ Committee memberships of Smt. Mona Bhide are as follows:

Name of the Company Board Membership Committee Membership

NIL NIL NIL

 Smt. Mona Bhide does not hold any share in the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 28th Annual Report of your Company and the Audited Accounts for the 
year ended 31st March, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(` in Lacs)

PARTICULARS March 31, 2017

Total Income 112840 100174

Less: Interest expenditure 71276 66784

   Overheads 14317 10610

   Depreciation & amortization 64 70

27183 22710

Provision for Tax 9450 7635

Deferred Tax Assets (710) 302

18443 14773

3244 6

21687 14779

General Reserve 9680 7330

Special Reserve under Section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 5190 4205

Proposed Equity Dividend 2962 2693

Tax on Proposed Dividend 609 548

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 3576 3244

IMPORTANT FINANCIAL RATIOS

PARTICULARS March 31, 2017

Return on Net Worth (%) 18.62 17.62

Return on Total Assets (%) 1.62 1.57

Book Value per share (`) 183.89 155.65

Earnings per share (`) 34.25 27.43

Debt Equity Ratio (times) 10.08 9.83

Average cost of funds (%) 7.82 8.77

Average yield on advances (%) 10.97 11.63

Net Interest Margin 3.15 2.86

DIVIDEND

Your Directors recommend payment of dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2018 of `5.50/- per equity share 
of `10/- each. The total dividend outgo for the current year would amount to `35.71 crores including dividend 
distribution tax of `6.09 Crores, as against `32.41 Crores including dividend distribution tax of                        ̀ 5.48 Crores in the 
previous year.

The dividend payout ratio for the current year, inclusive of additional tax on dividend will be 16.47% as against 
21.94% of previous year. As per Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2016, Dividend & Tax thereon 
will be recognized as liability on approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

himashwetha.j
Highlight

himashwetha.j
Highlight
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 Total income for the year under review is `1128.40 crores as 
against ` `

tax for the year ended is `184.43 crores as against `227.10 crores and `147.73 crores respectively for the previous 
year.

The Company’s main thrust continues to be on Individual Loans. New loans approved during the year amounted to 
`3869 crores and loans disbursed during the year are `3621 crores as against `2869 crores and `2761 crores for the 
year ended 31st March, 2017 respectively. The Retail Loan portfolio as at 31st March, 2018 stood at `11232 crores as 
compared to `9271 crores as on 31st March, 2017.

During the year under review, your Company has made provision to the extent of `61.32 crores as against `33.40 
crores provided for in the year 2017-18.

funds. Your Company has mobilized resources through the following sources:

 Your Company has borrowed fresh long term loans of `2167 crores from banks during the year as compared to 
`2835 crores during the previous year. The aggregate of term loans outstanding at the end of the financial year 
stood at `6171 crores as against `4611 crores as at the end of the previous year.

 With the continued support of National Housing Bank (NHB), your Company availed refinance amounting to  
` 631 crores during the year under review as against `1400 crores in the previous year. The refinance facility 
outstanding as on 31st March, 2018 is `2875 crores as against `2683 crores as at the end of the previous year.

 During the year 2017-18, your Company has raised resources by issuing Commercial Paper and also resorted to 
short term borrowings from the banks and the outstanding amount as on 31st March, 2018 is `893 crores.

 Your Company has outstanding balance of `45 Crores through issue of Non Convertible Debentures (NCD) on 
private placement as on 31st March 2018.

CREDIT RATING

Your Company had received rating from CRISIL and ICRA for its various borrowing programmes as follows:

 For Commercial Paper/short term loan programmes of `1500 crores as [CRISIL] “A1+” (Pronounced as CRISIL A1 
plus).

 For Fund Based Long Term Loan Programme of `100 crores as [CRISIL] AA+(Stable) (Pronounced as CRISIL double 
A plus/Stable).

 For Non-Convertible Debentures Borrowing Programme of `550 crores [CRISIL] “AA+(Stable)” (Pronounced as 
CRISIL double A Plus/Stable).

 For Commercial Paper(`1500 crores )/ short term loan (`500 crores) programmes of ̀ 2000 crores as [ICRA] “A1+” 
(Pronounced as ICRA A1 plus). This rating is the highest credit quality rating assigned by ICRA for Short Term Debt 
Instruments.
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 As per the Basel-II requirements - For Fund Based Long Term Loan Programme of `10,000 crores as [ICRA] AA+ 
(Stable) (Pronounced as ICRA double A plus/stable). This rating indicates the high credit quality rating assigned 
by ICRA to Long Term Debt Instruments.

 For Non-Convertible Debentures Borrowing Programme of `550 crores [ICRA] “AA+” (STABLE) (Pronounced as 
ICRA double A Plus/stable).

During the year under review your Company has opened its Branches at Kozhikode (Kerala), Nellore (Andhra Pradesh), 
st March, 

2018 is 69. Your Company is initiating brand building measures to generate general awareness and improve the image 
of the Company.

INSURANCE COVERAGE TO BORROWERS

Your Company had taken “Special Contingency Insurance” with The New India Assurance Company Ltd., which covers 
the borrowers of your Company as under:

  Personal accident (death only) risk cover, free of cost to the borrowers up to an 
amount of outstanding loan at any particular point of time during the term/ tenure of the housing loan.

  The property acquired out of loan, for and up to an extent of the outstanding 
loan amount, covered free of cost against fire, earthquake and allied perils affecting the mortgaged property.

Your Company has also tied up with ‘Kotak Mahindra Old Mutual Life Insurance Ltd.’, “Future Generali India Life 
Insurance Company Ltd.” and “Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Ltd.” (Formerly known as Birla Sun Life 
Insurance Company Ltd.) for getting insurance cover on the life of the borrower to the extent of the “Outstanding 
Home Loan”. The said “Group Life Cover” is optional and the Company arranges this insurance on request from the 
borrower. These schemes ensure protection to the families of the borrower in case of un-expected eventualities like 
untimely death of borrower due to accident or natural death.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR)

The Company has been maintaining the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) above the minimum required level prescribed 
by National Housing Bank (NHB) from time to time. The CAR prescribed for the present is 16.17%.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 is 16.17% as against 16.60% as at 31st March, 2017.

DEPOSITS

as of Balance sheet date.

As per the Securities & Exchange Board of India directives, the transactions of the Company’s shares must be 
compulsorily in dematerialised form. Your Company has signed an agreement with the Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited and National Securities Depository Limited for transaction of shares in dematerialised form. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to convert their holdings into dematerialised form. Out 
of 5,38,51,066 equity shares, 5,34,17,582 equity shares are in dematerialised form, (5,32,95,991 shares as on 31st 
March, 2017) which is 99.19% (98.97% as on 31st March, 2017) of the total shares as on 31st March, 2018.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form may utilise the nomination facility available by sending the prescribed 

Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nankramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana-500032. 
Shareholders holding shares in dematerailised form has to send their “Nomination” request to the respective 
Depository Participants.

The equity shares of the Company continue to be listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., and The National Stock 
Exchange of India Ltd., The Annual Listing fees for the year 2017-18 have been paid to these Stock Exchanges.
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UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TRANSFER TO INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount (dividends) that remained unclaimed and unpaid 

The Company has been intimating the shareholders to lodge their claim for payment due, if any, from time to time 

respective shareholders, certain amount still remains unclaimed. The Company has been intimating the shareholders 
to lodge their claim for dividend from time to time and such information is being mentioned in the Annual Reports 
every year.

Unclaimed dividend amounting to `
2009-10 has been transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during the month of October, 2017.

`17,63,190/- as 
on 31st March, 2018, would be transferred to IEPF during September, 2018 after settlement of claims received up to 
the date of completion of 7 years from the date of declaration of the dividend. Shareholders who have not claimed 
the said dividend may write to Registrars and Share Transfer agents.

In terms of the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017, Company is required to transfer the 
shares in respect of which dividend remains unpaid and unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Suspense Account. We have transferred total 106402 no. of equity 
shares to IEPF during the year.

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to conservation of energy and 
technology absorption as required to be furnished under Section 134(m) of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company did not earn any income in foreign currency during the year under review and also not incurred any 
expenses in foreign currency.

None of the employees of your company were in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits as laid down under 
Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Amendment Rules, 2011.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

a. In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures.

b. We have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end 
of 31st March, 2018 and of the profit /Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date.

c. We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities.

d. We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e. We have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls 
are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. We have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s, CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP Chartered Accountants, Mumbai were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors in the twenty-
fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company for the period of Five Years from the conclusion of 24th Annual 
General Meeting up to the conclusion of 29th

appointment at every Annual General Meeting.

be as per Section 139 & 141 of Companies Act, 2013.

Accountants, Mumbai as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the ensuing Annual General Meeting till conclusion 
of 29th Annual General Meeting. Suitable resolution for re-appointment requiring approval of the shareholders forms 
part of the agenda of the Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board has appointed Shri Makarand Joshi, M/s Makarand M. Joshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries as 

ended 31st March, 2018 is annexed as  to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and Article 125 of the Articles of Associations of 
the Company, Shri K. Sanath Kumar, Director is due to retire by rotation but is not seeking re-election due to 
superannuation from the services.

The Directors of your Company wish to place on record their appreciation for the services rendered and contribution 
made by him during his tenure as Director of the Company.

 was appointed as Additional Director pursuant to Article 111 of Article of Association of the 
th th Annual General Meeting of the Company in 

terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 and is eligible for appointment.

Shri NSR Chandra Prasad was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company pursuant to Article 111 of Articles 
th

General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is eligible for appointment.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and such other applicable provisions of the 
 

 is expiring in the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company and they are proposed to 
be re-appointed upto the conclusion of 30th AGM of the Company.

Company has received notices in writing from Members under Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013, proposing the 
candidature of Shri A. V. Girijakumar, Shri NSR Chandra Prasad, Shri V. Ramasamy, Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey and Smt. 

of Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors recommends their appointment. Your Independent Directors meet all 
the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013.

 
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Our Company has prescribed required parameters to evaluate the performance of the Board and its Committees. It 

experience. While evaluating the performance of the individual Director, it is always seen the Knowledge to perform 
their role; time and level of participation; performance of duties and level of oversight; and professional conduct 
and independence etc.
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The performance evaluation of the Directors was completed for the year. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairperson, Non Executive Directors and Independent Directors was carried out by the Board and Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Board met 4 (‘Four’) times during the year. For further details, please refer report on Corporate Governance.

RELATED PARTY POLICY AND TRANSACTIONS

Your Company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy pursuant to Listing Regulations, 2015 which is available 
 to the Directors’ Report.

Your Company is having following related party transactions which are not material in nature but the same are 
entered at arm’s length basis with the prior approval of Audit Committee:

1) Premises taken on Lease from Promoter Insurance Companies for our Registered and Corporate Office and 
Branch Offices.

2) Insurance Cover taken from Promoter Group Companies.

3) Raising of financial resources and any other service, if any.

During the year, Company has also given the following Housing Loan to the KMP which has been duly approved by 
Audit Committee:

Name Loan Amount 
(`)

Outstanding due as on  
31st March 2018 

(`)
Shri S. Sridharan,

Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary

 21,11,282/- 18,77,637/-

Form AOC 2 as required under Companies Act 2013 for related party transaction is annexed as  to the 
Directors’ Report which is having NIL Report.

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has established Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and statutory disclosures 
with respect to the CSR Committee and an Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed as  to this report.

VIGILANCE MECHANISM

As a conscious and vigilant organization, your Company has established proper vigilance mechanism for its Directors 
and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct or ethics policy. The Company has framed Whistle Blower Policy and the same is uploaded at the 
website of the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework for selection and remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personal (KMP) and Senior Management of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration policy is 

.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

under review, as required under Companies Act, 2013 and in pursuance of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations 2015 is annexed to the Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance.

Your Company has been complying with the principles of good Corporate Governance over the years. The Board of 
Directors supports the broad principles of Corporate Governance. In addition to the basic governance issues, the 
Board lays strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity.
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In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 
entered into with the Stock Exchange(s), the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS.

The work force strength of Your Company as on 31st March, 2018 is 271.

Annual Return in Form MGT 9 is enclosed as per  to the Directors’ Report.

Your Company is committed to provide and promote safe and healthy environment to all its employees without any 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors thank the valued customers, shareholders for their goodwill, patronage and support.

The Directors acknowledge with gratitude the valuable and timely advice, guidance and support received from 
the Promoter(s) namely General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC Re), The New India Assurance Company Ltd., 
National Insurance Company Ltd., The Oriental Insurance Company Ltd. and United India Insurance Company Limited.

their continued support through term loans. The Directors also thank the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI); 

authorities; Registrars and Share Transfer agents and the Auditors of the Company for their continued support.

levels for the progress of the Company during the year and look forward to their continued cooperation in realization 
of the corporate goals in the years ahead.

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.04.2018

National Insurance Building,
6th Floor, 14, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate,
Mumbai-400020

Sd-
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

National Insurance Building, 6th Floor,
14, Jamshedji Tata Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai- 400020

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
st March, 2018 (hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings 
the Company during the Audit Period).

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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 (g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the company and on the examination 
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with 

1. National Housing Bank Directions, 2010

2. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or majority as recorded 
in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period the Company

1. has approved the issue of redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures / Bonds to the extent of ` 800 Crores in the 
meeting of the members held on 24th July, 2017

2. has increased the Borrowing limit u/s 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 to ` 12,500 Crores in the meeting of 
the members of the Company held on 24th July, 2017

For 
Company Secretaries

Partner
FCS No. 5533
CP No. 3662

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.04.2018
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To

The Members,

National Insurance Building, 6th Floor,
14, Jamshedji Tata Road, Churchgate
Mumbai- 400020

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For 
Company Secretaries

Partner
FCS No. 5533
CP No. 3662

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.04.2018
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POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

of the Company and its Shareholders. Considering the requirements for approval of related party transactions as 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Rules framed there under and Regulation 23 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (previously Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement), 

parties and the proper conduct and documentation of all related party transactions.

Also as per Regulation 23, Listed Company is required to formulate a policy on materiality of related party transactions 
and dealing with related party transactions.

In light of the above, GICHF has framed this Policy on Related Party Transactions (“Policy”). This Policy has been 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The objective of this Policy is to set out (a) the materiality thresholds for related party transactions and; (b) the 
manner of dealing with the transactions between the Company and its related parties based on the Act, Listing 
Regulation 2015 and any other laws and regulations as may be applicable to the Company.

The Company shall not enter into any contract or arrangement with a Related Party without the approval of the Audit 
Committee. Prior approval of the Audit Committee shall be obtained for all Related Party Transactions.

Related Party Transactions that are repetitive in nature, subject to the following conditions:

 The name/s of the related party, nature of transaction, period of transaction, maximum amount of transaction 
that can be entered into;

 The indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation in the price, if any; and

The Audit Committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered 
into by the Company.

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for related party transactions repetitive in nature which shall be 
valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.

In the event any contract or arrangement with a related party is not in the ordinary course of business or at arm’s 
length, the Company shall comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed there under 
and obtain approval of the Board and or its shareholders, as applicable, for such contract or arrangement.

All material related party transactions, other than those with Exempted Wholly Owned Subsidiaries will be placed 
for approval of the shareholders of the Company.

A transaction with a related party is considered material if the transaction / transactions to be entered into, either 

DISCLOSURES

Company shall disclose, in the Board’s report, transactions prescribed in Section 188(1) of the Act with related 

into such transaction.
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014)

 (a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

 (b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

 (c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

 (d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

 (f)  date(s) of approval by the Board

 (g)  Amount paid as advances, if any:

 

 (a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

 (b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

 (c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

 (d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

 (e)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

 (f)  Amount paid as advances, if any:

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.04.2018

National Insurance Building,
6th Floor, 14, Jamshedji Tata Road,
Churchgate,
Mumbai-400020

Sd-
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

 The objective of our CSR Policy is to actively contribute to the social and economic development of the 
communities in which we operate. In so doing build a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker sections of 
society and raise the country’s human development index. The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the 
website of our Company www.gichfindia.com

 a)  Shri K. Sanath Kumar (Non-Executive Director), Chairman (upto 30th April, 2018)

 b)  Shri B. Chakrabarti (Independent Director), Member

 c)  Smt. Mona Bhide (Independent Director), Member

 d)  Shri S. Gopakumar (Managing Director & CEO), Member

 ` 190.64 crores

 ` 3.813 crores

`3.813 crores for f.y. 2017-18

 b)  Amount unspent, if any – `3.813 crores for f.y. 2017-18

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. 
No

CSR 
project or 
activity 

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or programs 
(1) local area or others

(2) specify the state 
and district where 
projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
programs 
wise

Amount spent on the 
projects or programs

Sub-heads:

on projects or 
programs.

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 
period.

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency*

TOTAL NIL

 Your Company could not spend the full amount of CSR due to no prior experience of CSR activities.

:

 The implementation of CSR Policy, is in accordance with the CSR policy of the Company.

 Sd/-  Sd/-

K. Sanath Kumar

Committee Chairman
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
I. PREAMBLE

 Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“referred as Listing Regulations, 2015”), the Board of Directors of every listed 
Company shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company already constituted 
Remuneration Committee comprising of three non-executive Independent Directors as required under Listing 
Regulations, 2015. In order to align with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amended Listing 
Regulations, 2015, the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
along with the applicable rules thereto and Listing Regulations, 2015.

 “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

 “Company” means GIC HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED.

 “ ” means, Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

 “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

 “ ” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

 “ ” means Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their 
absence, a Whole -time Director; Chief Financial Officer; Company Secretary; and such other Officer as may be 
prescribed.

 “ ” mean the personnel of the Company who are members of its core management 
team (Sr. Vice President and Vice President) excluding Board of Directors.

 The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

 a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management.

 c) To evaluate the performance of the Members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for 
further evaluation.

 d) To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

 f) To devise a policy on Board diversity.

 g) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any 

 h) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her 
appointment, as per Company’s Policy.
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 c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole time Director who has 
attained the age of seventy years.

 

 Our Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at 
Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include 
and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race, gender 
and other distinctions between Directors. These differences will be considered in determining the optimum 
composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately. All Board appointments are made 
on merit, in the context of the skills, experience, independence and knowledge which the Board as a whole 
requires to be effective. The Board Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee (‘the Committee’) reviews 
and assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. 
The Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of Board effectiveness. In reviewing Board 
composition, the Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, 
those described above, in order to enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

 

 

years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

 

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and 
disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report.

Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more 
in the Company as on 1st October, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee 
as per regulatory requirement, he /she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years 
only.

  -  At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed Company.

REMOVAL

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director or Senior Management 
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy 
of the Company.

 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Directors yearly or at such intervals as may be 
considered necessary.
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 In our Company, Managerial Persons are appointed from one of our Promoter Insurance Companies on deputation 
basis and their remuneration is also as per the pay structure of the concerned Promoter Insurance Companies.

 The remuneration of KMP and Senior Management is also approved by the Board of the Directors of the Company 
and the same is revised every five years with the Board’s approval.

 Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee 
thereof.

 Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 
2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government 
from time to time.

 Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman 
of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Committee 
meeting.
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[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L65922MH1989PLC054583

Registration Date 12/12/1989

Name of the Company GIC Housing Finance Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited By Shares/Non Government Company

details
National Insurance Building, 6th Floor, 14, J Tata Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai-400020
Tel. No. 022-2285 1765 (5 lines)

Whether listed company YES

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PVT. LTD.
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Hyderabad – 500032 P : +91 040 67161560

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. 
No. Company

1 HOUSING FINANCE 65922 100%

Not Applicable 

 i) 

% Change 
during 

the yearDemat
Shares

Demat
Shares

A.  Promoters 

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt/ State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 22701128 0 22701128 42.16 22701128 0 22701128 42.16 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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% Change 
during 

the yearDemat
Shares

Demat
Shares

(2)  Foreign
 a)  NRIs Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 b)  Other –Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 c)  Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 d)  Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 e)  Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1. Institutions
 a)  Mutual Funds/UTI 4602814 3600 4606414 8.55 3430810 100 3430910 6.37 -2.18
 b)  Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 c)  Foreign Portfolio 

Investors
1575567 0 1575567 2.93 1617197 0 1617197 3 0.07

 d)  Banks / FI 33254 200 33454 0.06 61929 200 62129 0.12 0.06
 e)  Insurance Companies 2550250 0 2550250 4.74 3050250 0 3050250 5.66 0.92
 f)  Foreign Venture Capital 

Investors
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 g)  Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2.  Non Institutions

 i) Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto ` 2 lakh

11156669 545473 11702142 21.73 12066214 430382 12496596 23.21 1.48

 ii)  Individual shareholders 
holdingnominal share 
capital in excess of  
` 2 lakh

5120757 0 5120757 9.51 4668686 0 4668686 8.67 -0.84

 NBFCs Registered with RBI 13847 0 13847 0.03 21732 0 21732 0.04 0.01
 Trust 54448 0 54448 0.10 36253 0 36253 0.07 -0.03
 Bodies Corporate 4661496 5002 4666498 8.67 4772621 2802 4775423 8.87 0.2
 Clearing Members 108401 0 108401 0.20 197763 0 197763 0.37 0.17
 Non Resident (Non Rep) 134181 0 134181 0.25 173480 0 173480 0.32 0.07
 Non Resident 582679 800 583479 1.08 512917 0 512917 0.95 -0.13
 Foreign Nationals 500 0 500 0.00 200 0 200 0.00 0.00
 IEPF 0 0 0 0 106402 106402 0.20

0.1

for GDRs & ADRs
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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ii) 

Sr. 
No.

No. 
of 

Shares

% of 

Shares 
of the 

%of 
Shares 

shares

No. 
of Shares

% of 

Shares 
of the 

%of 
Shares 

shares

% 

share 

during the 
year

GENERAL INSURANCE 
CORPORATION OF INDIA

8218802 15.26 0 8218802 15.26 0 0

2 THE NEW INDIA 
ASSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

4594204 8.53 0 4594204 8.53 0 0

UNITED INDIA INSURANCE 
COMPANY LTD.

3956000 7.35 0 3956000 7.35 0 0

4 THE ORIENTAL INSURANCE 
COMPANY LTD.

2975024 5.52 0 2975024 5.52 0 0

5 NATIONAL INSURANCE 
COMPANY LTD.

2957098 5.49 0 2957098 5.49 0 0

iii) 

Sr. 
No.

No. of 
shares shares of 

No. of 
Shares shares of the 

NIL

iv)

Sr. 
No. during the 

No. of 
shares shares of 

No. of 
shares shares of 

RELIANCE CAPITAL TRUSTEE CO. LTD A/C 
RELIANCEBANKI

4267987 7.93 2628990 4.88

2 LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 2712250 5.04 3712250 6.89
TATA INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED 1900000 3.53 1900000 3.53

4 COHESION INDIA BEST IDEAS (MASTER) 
FUND LIMITED

575784 1.07 605784 1.12

5 INDUSTRIAL CREDIT & INV CORP OF INDIA 
LTD

546528 1.01 419450 0.78

SONAL D SHAH 500010 0.93 500010 0.93
PREETI N SHAH 500000 0.93 500000 0.93

8 URMILA D SHAH 500000 0.93 500000 0.93
CD EQUIFINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED 487308 0.90 626120 1.16
ISHWAR GREWAL 387683 0.72 407683 0.76
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v)

Sr. 
No. beginning of the during the  

No. of 
shares shares of 

No. of 
Shares shares of 

At the beginning of 
the year

0 0 0 0

2 Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ 
sweat equity etc)

0 0 0 0

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0

 Deposits (`)
Loans 

(`)

Deposits
Indebtedness 

(`)

Indebtedness at the beginning of     

i)  Principal Amount  73,39,46,74,355  8,97,38,43,279  -  82,36,85,17,634 

ii)  Interest due but not paid  -  -  -  - 

iii)  Interest accrued but not due  3,65,78,836  -  -  3,65,78,836 

 73,43,12,53,191  8,97,38,43,279  -  82,40,50,96,470 

Change in Indebtedness during 

· Addition 27,97,71,35,402 60,12,00,00,000 - 88,09,71,35,402

· Reduction 10,45,97,19,716 60,16,52,36,111 - 70,62,49,55,827

Net Change 17,51,74,15,686 -4,52,36,111 - 17,47,21,79,575

Indebtedness at the 

i)  Principal Amount 90,91,20,90,041 8,92,86,07,168 - 99,84,06,97,209

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 3,64,72,192 - - 3,64,72,192

90,94,85,62,233 8,92,86,07,168 - 99,87,71,69,401
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Sr. 
No.

Amount (`)
Gross salary 
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-

tax Act, 1961
24,77,533

(b)  Salary Arrear  0
(c)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0

0
2 Stock Option 0

Sweat Equity 0
4 0
5 Others :

Performance Incentive
Leave Encashment and Other Allowances
L.T.S

1,53,808
44,333

3,35,010
Contribution to Pension and other funds 1,38,204

Sr. 
No. Remuneration Amount 

(`)Shri V. 
Ramasamy

Smt Mona 
Bhide

Shri B. 

barti

Shri A V 

haran

Shri M K 
Garg

Shri NSR 
Chandra 
Prasad

Fee for attending 
board & committee 
meetings

3,90,000 1,20,000 2,10,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 30,000 12,00,000

  Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
  Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3,90,000 1,20,000 2,10,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 30,000 12,00,000
2

· Fee for attending board 
/ committee meetings

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

· Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

· Others, please specify 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3,90,000 1,20,000 2,10,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 30,000 12,00,000

`
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 C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. 
No.

Shri S. Sridharan

Amount (`)
1 Gross salary 2222328

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

-

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 560547
(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 

1961
-

2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
4 Commission 

- others, specify…
-
-

5 Others, please Specify -
6 Contributions to pension and other funds

TOTAL

Type

NA NA NA NA NA

Sd/

S. SRIDHARAN

SR. VICE PRESIDENT & COMPANY SECRETARY

 Sd/-

 S. GOPAKUMAR

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

himashwetha.j
Highlight
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

 For the first time since the financial crisis a decade ago, all of the world’s major economies are growing. The 
United States, the world’s largest economy, is into its ninth year of growth, with the International Monetary 
Fund lifting expectations for expansion to 2.7 percent this year from 2.3 percent because of the tax cuts. China 
has diminished fears of an abrupt halt to its decades-long growth trajectory. Europe, only recently dismissed 
as anemic and hopelessly vexed by political dysfunction, has emerged as a growth leader. Even Japan, long 
synonymous with grinding decline, is expanding as well. Rising oil prices have lifted Russia and Middle East 
producers, while Mexico has so far transcended fears that menacing trade rhetoric from the Trump administration 
would dent its economy. Brazil, still suffering the effects of a veritable depression, is flashing tentative signs of 
recovery.

 The Indian economy had to weather the impact of a double whammy of sorts in 2017. Even as it tried to 
cope with the demonetisation shocker of November 2016, the government’s decision to roll out the Goods and 
Services Tax from July crippled it even further, primarily due to faulty implementation of the mammoth step 
towards overhauling the indirect tax system.

 It was, however, also a year of contrasts. On the one hand, economic growth during the first quarter of 2017-
18 slumped to a three-year low of 5.7%, before rebounding a tad in the second quarter. But the booming stock 
market did not seem to either take note of the impact of GST or the note ban move, as benchmark indexes 
climbed nearly 25% year to date.

 Besides, the bad loans problem dragged the banking sector down and crimped lending activity while the 
agriculture sector’s woes intensified. A rating upgrade, however, by Moody’s and early signs of a recovery in 
certain sectors were seen as a brief respite. As the year drew to a close, retail inflation raised its ugly head to 
dampen the mood yet again, with murmurs of an impending rate hike by the Reserve Bank of India looming large.

 Overall, India’s economic performance for 2017 was a mixed bag – struggling, but with green shoots of a 
turnaround visible as the New Year sets in. The year started with the economy reeling under the note ban 
move, leading to the near-demise of small businesses, especially in the cash-dependent informal sector, besides 
bringing down infrastructure, including real estate, to its knees and crushing consumer demand. While the 
construction sector remained sluggish, especially due to slowing demand of finished steel and cement, the 
biggest concern was agriculture, which continued to be under stress with growth slowing in the second quarter 
to 1.7%, compared with the 4.1% clocked in the year-ago period.

 Despite the government’s efforts to tackle bad loans that plague a significant chunk of the country’s state-
owned banks, the problem remained the elephant in the room during the year without significant progress and 
seeking urgent attention. In October, the government announced a mammoth recapitalisation plan of ` 2.11 lakh 
crore for public-sector banks.

 The corporate debt overhang and the banking sector’s soured loans kept private investments under pressure. 
Government data show that gross fixed capital formation, a proxy for gauging investments, slumped to 1.6% 
growth in the April-June quarter. The situation, however, improved in the second quarter with growth coming in 
at 4.7%. Still, that’s not enough.
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 Ratings firm India Ratings said in a recent report that a recovery in the investment cycle is unlikely before 2019-
20 due to muted demand and high debt levels and that government efforts will also be ineffective. The unit 
of global ratings firm Fitch also said that companies will shy away from investments despite the prevailing low 
interest rates. To compound the problem, interest rates may start picking up next year as news of retail inflation 
zooming to a 15-month high of 4.88%, breaching the central bank’s 4.2-4.6% target range, fanned speculation 
monetary tightening.

 However, it was not all doom, gloom, confusion and heartburn for the Indian economy. This was highlighted by 
the Indian stock market scaling new highs, and India rising 30 places in the World Bank’s doing business report, 
reaching the top 100 in the world for the first time.

 India is projected to grow at 7.4 per cent in Financial Year (FY) 2018-19 as against China’s 6.8 per cent, according 
to International Monetary Fund, making it the fastest growing country among emerging economies following last 
year’s slowdown due to demonetisation and the implementation of the GST. In its latest World Economic Outlook 
(WEO) update released in Davos, Switzerland on the sidelines of the World Economic Forum, the International 
Monetary Fund has projected a 7.8 per cent growth rate for India in 2019-20. Growth rate projections for both 
2018 and 2019 remains unchanged since its October 2017 WEO projections. China, during the same period, is 
expected to grow at 6.6 per cent and 6.4 per cent respectively, the IMF said.

 Indian Government is guided by mission to strengthen agriculture, rural development, health, education, 
employment, MSME and infrastructure sectors. As per Government, a series of structural reforms will propel 
India among the fastest growing economies of the world. Country firmly on course to achieve over 8 % growth as 
manufacturing, services and exports back on good growth path. Government is also taking up the programmes to 
direct the benefits of structural changes and good growth to reach farmers, poor and other vulnerable sections 
of our society and to uplift the under-developed regions. Government has also given big thrust to Medium, Small 
and Micro Enterprises (MSMEs) to boost employment and economic growth. Emphasising that infrastructure is the 
growth driver of economy, the Finance Minister estimated that investment in excess of ` 50 lakh crore is needed 
to increase growth of GDP and connect the nation with a network of roads, airports, railways, ports and inland 
waterways. The Government has made an all-time high allocation to rail and road sectors and is committed to 
further enhance public investment.

 REAL ESTATE INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS

 The real estate sector is one of the most globally recognised sectors. In India, real estate is the second largest 
employer after agriculture and is slated to grow at 30 per cent over the next decade. The real estate sector 
comprises four sub sectors - housing, retail, hospitality, and commercial. The growth of this sector is well 
complemented by the growth of the corporate environment and the demand for office space as well as urban 
and semi-urban accommodations.

 India’s rank in the Global House Price Index has jumped 13 spots to reach the ninth position among 55 international 
markets, on the back of increasing prices in mainstream residential sector. The Indian real estate market is 
expected to touch US$ 180 billion by 2020. The housing sector alone contributes 5-6 per cent to the country’s 
Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

 The Indian real estate sector has witnessed high growth in recent times with the rise in demand for office as 
well as residential spaces. Private equity investments in real estate are estimated to grow to US$ 100 billion by 
2026 with tier 1 and 2 cities being the prime beneficiaries. India stood third in the US Green Building Council’s 
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(USGBC) ranking of the top 10 countries for Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certified 
buildings, with over 752 LEED-certified projects across 20.28 million gross square meters of space. According to 
data released by Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP), the construction development sector in 
India has received Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) equity inflows to the tune of US$ 24.66 billion in the period 
April 2000-September 2017.

 The Government of India along with the governments of the respective states has taken several initiatives to 
encourage the development in the sector. The Smart City Project, where there is a plan to build 100 smart cities, 
is a prime opportunity for the real estate companies. As of November 2017, a total of 3.076 million houses have 
been sanctioned under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) (U) since its launch, according to the Ministry 
of Housing and Urban Affairs, Government of India. The Ministry of Housing and Urban Poverty Alleviation has 
sanctioned the construction of 84,460 more affordable houses for urban poor in five states, namely West Bengal, 
Jharkhand, Punjab, Kerala and Manipur under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) scheme with a total 
investment of ` 3,073 crore (US$ 460 million). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has given its 
approval for the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) platform which will help in allowing all kinds of investors to 
invest in the Indian real estate market. It would create an opportunity worth ` 1.25 trillion (US$ 19.65 billion) 
in the Indian market over the years. Government has also proposed to assign infrastructure status to affordable 
housing projects and facilitate higher investments. Government will be establishing a dedicated affordable 
housing fund in the National Housing Bank funded from priority sector lending shortfall and fully serviced bond 
authorised by the government of India.

 OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS IN REAL ESTATE INDUSTRY

 Real estate which was one of the most sought after investment avenue among India has seen a dip in its popularity 
off late because of the stagnation or dip in prices. In line with the past three-four years, the performance of 
real estate in 2017 was lacklustre in terms of growth in prices and sales. Real estate which was one of the most 
sought after Investment Avenue among India has seen a dip in its popularity off late because of the stagnation 
or dip in prices. Apart from this, real estate has been considered a safe haven for parking black money but 
the reforms such as Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act (RERA) and Goods & Services Tax (GST) and 
Demonetisation brought in by the government to curb the black money menace has hit the sector hard. In some 
of the real estate markets, the sales are yet to catch up to the pre-demonetisation level. In 2017, 1.6 lakh units 
were sold during Q1-Q3 2017 as per Anarock research. The decline in sales was only to the tune of 30% compared 
to Q1-Q3 2016. Also, the number of new launches were also limited. Only 94,000 units were added in top 7 cities 
of India between Q1-Q3 2017, which is a drop of more than 50% from the same period in 2016.

 However, experts believe that real estate market is going through a transitional phase. Things are going to 
get better over time and the reforms will help in shaping up the industry to a more consumer friendly market. 
“Overall, 2017 saw the Government making it clear that home buyers will no longer be at the mercy of real 
estate developers, and putting various measures in place to ensure that housing supply syncs up with demand 
and pertinent projects are developed.

 Affordable Housing is going to be the big thing in 2018 given the thrust by the government. The government 
has awarded it with the much needed infrastructure status. The definition of affordable housing and houses 
classified under mid income group was also changed by the government to cover a larger buyer base and help 
developers offload their budget homes inventory. “The real estate market in 2018 is expected to show price 
levels on a similar scale when compared with those of 2017. All in all, the year will remain a good time to buy. 
It is expected that the market will see more options in ready stock since a greater number of completions are 
to take place in the next year.
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 SEGMENT REPORTING

 The Company is exclusively engaged in the Housing Finance business and revenues are mainly derived from 
this activity. Accounting Standard 17 regarding Segment-wise Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2011 does 
not apply to your Company since revenues are derived from only one segment i.e. housing finance activity.

 RISKS AND CONCERNS

 Your Company is exposed to risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, increase in Non Performing 
Assets and operational risk which are inherent in the housing finance business e.g. take-overs of our existing 
accounts. Intense competition, increase in cost of borrowing and narrowing of spread, pose a big challenge for 
sustaining profitability on consistent basis. Prevailing inflationary trends will impact the affordability of vast 
number of end users.

 RISK MANAGEMENT

 Liquidity risks and interest rate risks arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities are managed by 
your Company by constant monitoring of the maturity profiles with a periodical review of the position. Credit 
risks are minimized by having established credit appraisal system in place, prescribing exposure limits, periodic 
review of the portfolio. Our Company operates in the mid segment and large chunk of borrowers are in the salary 
group. Your Company is having CIBIL checks, field verification, stringent legal and technical due diligence etc. 
which have helped to reduce incremental delinquencies. Our recovery mechanism is also robust supported by 
best use of SARFAESI Act. Operational risks are minimized by strengething the internal control procedures and 
addressing the deficiencies reported by the internal auditors.

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

 The Company has internal control systems which is commensurate with the size of the operations. Internal audit 
checks are conducted regularly and internal auditor’s recommendations are reviewed for improving systems and 
procedures. Your Company takes efforts from time to time to meet the changes in business conditions along 
with statutory and accounting requirements. The internal audit is carried out by independent firms of Chartered 
Accountants and covers the key areas of business. There is also in house internal audit department which 
supplements the outsourced internal audit activity. The Audit Committee & Statutory Auditors are periodically 
apprised of the internal audit findings and compliances and Audit Committee reviews the internal control system.

 MARKETING

 The marketing of your Company’s home loan products are done through direct sales, through Direct Selling 
Agents and tie up with builders. Marketing of home loan products with a focused attention on existing as well as 
the prospective customers is a constant endeavour at the Company with  spread across the country.

 HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

 The Company has a dedicated team of , who have been contributing to the progress and growth 
of the Company. The manpower requirement at Offices of the Company is assessed continuously and recruitment 
is conducted accordingly.



4528th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 The Related Party Transactions with details are furnished in the Notes on Accounts [Note No.24 point No.12 (XI)], 
forming part of the Accounts. None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the 
interests of the Company. Transactions with related parties entered into by the Company in the normal course 
of business were placed before the Audit Committee.

 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

 Statements in this report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimations, expectations 
are “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. These 
statements are based on certain assumptions in respect of future events and Company assumes no responsibility 
in case the actual results differ materially due to change in internal or external factors.

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company believes “Corporate Governance” is about commitment to values and about ethical business conduct. It is 
about how an organization is managed. This includes its corporate and other business structures, its culture, policies 
and procedures which ensures that the Company is managed in a manner that meets stakeholder’s aspirations and 

The Board of Directors is pleased to place here below a report on the Corporate Governance practices followed by 
your Company: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS/ BOARD MEETINGS 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of your Company comprises 14 members as on 31st March, 2018. Most of the members of the Board are 
Non-Executive Directors. 

Sr. No.

Independent

No. of 

in other 
Companies

No. of Committees membership 
in other Companies

Member Chairman/ 
Chairperson

1 Smt. Alice G. Vaidyan
(Non-Executive Chairperson) 

Non-Executive 
Director 

5 4 1

2 Shri G. Srinivasan Non-Executive 
Director 

4 5 1

3 Shri K. Sanath Kumar Non-Executive 
Director

3 1 1

4 Shri M. N. Sarma Non-Executive 
Director

4 0 1

5 Shri A. V. Girijakumar Non-Executive 
Director

3 0 1

6 Shri Y. Ramulu Non-Executive 
Director

1 0 0

7 Shri V. Ramasamy Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

1 0 1

8 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey Non Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

7 8 3

9 Smt. Mona Bhide Non Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

0 0 0

10 Shri B. Chakrabarti Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

1 1 1
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Sr. No.

Independent

No. of 

in other 
Companies

No. of Committees membership 
in other Companies

Member Chairman/ 
Chairperson

11 Shri M. K. Garg Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

3 1 1

12 Shri A. V. Muralidharan Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

0 0 0

13 Shri NSR Chandra Prasad Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Director

2 1 0

14 Shri S. Gopakumar Managing 
Director & CEO

1 0 0

The Company maintains Register of Contracts and details of Companies and Firms (if any) in which Directors are 
interested as provided in Section 189(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Independent and Non Executive Directors 
of the Company do not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company except for the sitting fees 
received by them.

TERM OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS

In terms of applicable provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013 two third of the total strength of the 
Directors are liable to retire by rotation and one third of them are required to retire every year and if eligible, may 
seek re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013, and Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Shri K. Sanath Kumar who is retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is not seeking re-
election due to superannuation.

Shri A. V. Girijakumar and Shri NSR Chandra Prasad were appointed as an Additional Directors on 18th August, 2017 and 
26th

As per Section 149(10) and any other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey, Shri V. 
Ramasamy and Smt. Mona Bhide whose term is upto 28th

as Independent Director upto the conclusion of 30th AGM of the Company.

Your Company has received a notice in writing from shareholders as per section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
their appointment.

Your Directors recommend re-appointment and appointment of Directors and the related resolution on the subject 
is included in the notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has framed and put in place the Code of Conduct, duly approved by the Board of Directors. The said 

conduct is posted on the website of the Company  

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors During the year under review, the Company had provided 
suitable training to Independent Directors, familiarizing them with the company, their roles, rights, responsibilities 
in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates and business model of the company. The 
details of such familiarisation programme are disclosed on the Company’s website 
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Normally the meetings of the Board are held at Mumbai, dates of which are decided in advance. The Members of the 

The Board met Four times during the year on 26th April, 2017; 24th July, 2017; 26th October, 2017; and 30th January, 
2018. The gap between two meetings did not exceed four months.

Number of Board Meetings held: 4

 Number of Meetings 
attended th

Smt. Alice G. Vaidyan 2 Yes
Shri G. Srinivasan 1 No
Shri K. Sanath Kumar 3 No
Shri Y. Ramulu 1 Yes
Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey 2 Yes
Smt. Mona Bhide 3 Yes
Shri V. Ramasamy 4 Yes
Shri B. Chakrabarti 4 Yes
Shri M. K. Garg 4 Yes
Shri A. V. Muralidharan 3 Yes
Shri S. Gopakumar 4 Yes
Shri A V Girijakumar
(Appointed as on 18th August, 2017)

2 NA

Shri M N Sarma
(Appointed as on 26th October, 2017)

1 NA

Shri NSR Chandra Prasad
(Appointed as on 26th October, 2017)

1 NA

Sr. No.

Smt. Alice G. Vaidyan Nil

2 Shri G. Srinivasan Nil

Shri K. Sanath Kumar Nil

4 Shri M N Sarma Nil

5 Shri A. V. Girija Kumar Nil

Shri Y. Ramulu Nil

Shri V. Ramasamy Nil

8 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey Nil

Smt. Mona Bhide Nil

Shri B. Chakrabarti Nil

Shri M. K. Garg Nil

Shri A. V. Muralidharan Nil

Shri NSR Chandra Prasad Nil

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

the following Committees with delegation in particular areas.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was constituted in the year April 1996. The present Audit Committee consists 
of Shri V. Ramasamy, Director, as the Chairman of the Committee, Shri Y. Ramulu, Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey and 
Shri A. V. Muralidharan; Directors are its other members. The Members of the Committee are experienced Directors 
having knowledge of Accounts, Law and other related subjects. The composition, quorum, powers, role, review of 
information, scope etc… of the Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The powers, role and scope of the Audit Committee are as per Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, issued as per 

contribute to its functioning. The prime responsibility of Audit Committee is to review with the Management, the 

reports, reviewing with Management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, reports relating to 
compliance with laws and other legal requirements, records relating to related party transactions and defaults, if 
any, in the payment(s) to the various investors of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the inspection reports, 
if any, submitted by the statutory/ regulatory Authorities together with the replies thereon. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Committee met four times during the year 
under review on 26th April, 2017, 24th July, 2017, 26th October, 2017 and 30th

meetings of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board for noting.

 Number of Audit Committee Meetings held: 4

Sr. No. Number of Meetings Attended

1 Shri V. Ramasamy 4

2 Shri Y. Ramulu 1

3 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey 2

4 Shri A. V. Muralidharan 
(appointed on 1st January, 2018)

1

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board in its meeting held on 6th May, 2009. The 
terms of reference of the Committee includes to guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, 

attributes and independence of a Director, to evaluate the performance of the Members of the Board and provide 
necessary report to the Board for further evaluation, to recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to ensure that level and composition of remuneration is 

benchmarks, to devise a policy on Board diversity, to carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from 

perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties. The Committee 
presently consists of 3 Directors - Smt. Mona Bhide, Director is the Chairperson of the Committee. The other members 
include Shri V. Ramasamy and Shri Y. Ramulu. The Committee has laid down the following criteria for evaluation of 
performance of Independent Directors and the Board:
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1. Attendance and contribution at Board and Committee meetings.

2. Familiar with the Company’s Policies, Values & Beliefs and Code of Conduct.

3. Keep himself/herself updated with the development & factors affecting the Company’s business.

4. Discloses his/her interest in any of the agenda items under discussion and any change in directorship/other 
interest.

5. Provides inputs and suggestions to Management/Board in his/her areas of expertise

6. Any other criteria, as fixed by the Committee from time to time.

The Committee met on 26th April, 2017; 24th July, 2017; 26th October, 2017; 30th January, 2018.

Attendance Record of Directors: Number of Committee Meetings held: 4

Sr. No. Number of Meetings Attended

1 Smt. Mona Bhide 3

2 Shri V. Ramasamy 4

3 Shri Y. Ramulu 1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Non Executive Independent Directors of our Company were paid only the eligible sitting fees for attending 
meetings and no other remuneration has been paid. The Non Executive Independent Directors do not have any 
material pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company.

The quantum of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive, Independent Directors are as follows:

Sr. No. Sitting Fees Paid (`)

1 Shri V. Ramasamy 3,90,000

2 Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey 1,20,000

3 Smt. Mona Bhide 2,10,000

4 Shri B. Chakrabarti 1,50,000

5 Shri M. K. Garg 1,50,000

6 Shri A. V. Muralidharan 1,50,000

7 Shri NSR Chandra Prasad 30,000

The details of the Remuneration paid to the Managing Director & CEO for the year 2017-18 are as follows:

Amount (`)

Salary 24,77,533

Salary Arrears 0

Leave Encashment and other allowances 44,333

Performance Incentive 1,53,808

Contribution to Pension and Other funds 1,38,204

Perquisites 3,35,010

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted in the year March 1995. It presently consists of 4 Directors. 
Shri V. Ramasamy, Director is the Chairman of the Committee. The other members include Smt. Mona Bhide, Shri Y. 
Ramulu and Shri M K Garg. 
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The Chairman of the Committee is a Non–Executive (Independent) Director. The Committee reviews, processes, 
standard operating procedures and initiatives taken by the Company relating to investor service, reviews compliances 
with the requirements relating to listing agreements and Corporate Governance, share-holding pattern, periodical 

of the securities issued by the Company, complaints, if any, like non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of 
declared dividends, complaints made with any statutory agencies including SEBI by the shareholders/ investors, if 
any, compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and various other statutes as applicable 

To expedite the process of share transfers, the Board delegated the 
power of share transfer to the Committee consisting of the Managing Director & CEO and the Company Secretary. The 
Committee meets on weekly basis and approves the periodical transfers/ transmissions, issue of duplicate shares, 
Rematerialisation, Name deletion etc… The Board Committee reviews the queries and complaints received from the 
shareholders and the steps taken for their redressal, reconciliation of share capital, shareholding pattern. During the 
year under review, 7 queries were received, which were replied/ resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders. 
There are no pending share transfers. 

did not meet during the year.

E-mail ID for the purpose of registering queries/ complaints by investors – investors@gichf.com

ASSET LIABILITY AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Asset Liability and Risk Management Committee of the Board consists of 3 Directors. Shri V. Ramasamy, Chairman of 
the Committee, Shri Y. Ramulu, Member and Shri S. Gopakumar, Member. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee was constituted by the Board in its meeting held on 7th May, 2014. 
The Board level Committee shall oversee the entire process of implementation of CSR related activities through 
review meeting on the reports of Management level Committee, which shall be submitted to it quarterly.

The CSR Committee presently consists of Shri K. Sanath Kumar, Non-Executive Director (Chairman), Smt. Mona Bhide, 
Independent Director, Shri B. Chakrabarti, Independent Director and Shri S, Gopakumar, Managing Director & CEO. 

COMMUNICATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The main source of information to the Shareholders is the Annual Report, which includes interalia, the Directors’ 
Report, the Report of the Board of Directors on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

the Shareholders in leading National and Regional daily newspapers and intimated to the Stock Exchanges as required 

Company’s website address is .

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGMs)

The particulars of Annual General Meetings held during the last three years are as follows:

Year Date Time

2014-15 17th July, 2015 3.30 p.m. Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan Mumbai, Chavan Centre, Cultural Hall, 
4th Floor, General Jagannath Bhosale Marg, Mumbai – 400021. 

2015-16 27th July, 2016 3.30 p.m. Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan Mumbai, Chavan Centre, Cultural Hall, 
4th Floor, General Jagannath Bhosale Marg, Mumbai – 400021. 

2016-17 24th July, 2017 3.30 p.m. Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan Mumbai, Chavan Centre, Cultural Hall, 
4th Floor, General Jagannath Bhosale Marg, Mumbai – 400021. 
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DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

Number of 

17th July, 2015
(AGM)

Nil Nil

27th July, 2016
(AGM)

NIL NIL

24th July, 2017
(AGM)

6 1. Increase in the borrowing power of the Company.

2. Creation of Charges on moveable and immovable property of the Company.

3. Re-Appointment of Independent Director(s)

4. Private Placement of Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs/
Bonds).

DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT IN THE LAST YEAR.

NA

NA

 No Resolution 
is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot as on the date of AGM.

PROCEDURE FOR POSTAL BALLOT 

Your Company follows the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 for Postal Ballot, if 
any.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material 
nature, with its Promoters, the Directors or the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc., that may have 
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

 None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interests of the Company. 
Transactions with related parties entered into by the company in the normal course of business were placed 
before the Audit Committee. Details of related party transactions as per Accounting Standards – 18 are included 
in Notes to the Accounts [Note No. 24 point No. 12(XI)] 

 Policy on related party transaction is available on the Company’s website i.e. www.gichfindia.com

b) Details of non-compliances by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchange/s, SEBI and any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
years.

 There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter related to capital markets during the last three 
years. There were no strictures or penalties imposed by Securities and Exchange Board of India or by the Stock 
Exchange/s or any statutory authority for non compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing 
Regulation, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and Employees 
to report to the Audit Committee about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. 
The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company website i.e. www.gichfindia.com. None of the personnel 
of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee.
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d) The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of the Chartered 
Accountants of India from time to time and other regulations applicable to it.

e) Related Party Transaction Policy is available at the website of the Company www.gichfindia.com

f) SUBSIDIARIES

 Your Company has no subsidiaries and as such the requirement relating to certain compliances as prescribed are 
not applicable.

g) GOING CONCERN

 The Board of Directors of your Company is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its 
business for the foreseeable future and consequently considers it appropriate to adopt the Going Concern basis 
in preparing its financial statements.

h) AUDIT QUALIFICATION

 There is no qualification on any of the financial statements for the financial year 2017-18 of the Company.

i) SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

 Detailed information in this regard is provided in the Section “Shareholders Information” which forms part of 
this Annual Report. 

         Sd/-
Place : Mumbai      
Date : 24.04.2018   
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Date : 02nd August, 2018

  Time :  3.30 P.M.

  Venue :  Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan Mumbai, 
Chavan Centre, Cultural Hall, 4th Floor, General 
Jagannath Bhosale Marg, Mumbai – 400021.

1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2018

th June, 2018
(Subject to Limited Review).

Before the end of July, 2018

Results for the second quarter ending 30th September, 2018
(Subject to Limited Review).

Before the end of October, 2018 

Results for the third quarter ending 31st December, 2018
(Subject to Limited Review).

Before the end of January, 2019

st March, 2019. Before the end of May, 2019

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March, 2019 Before the end of September, 2019

 The Register of Members and Share Transfer books are closed keeping in view the Scheduled date of the Annual 
General Meeting. For the year under reference the above registers/ books would be closed from 24th

(Tuesday) to 2nd (both days inclusive) and was notified accordingly.

- The equity shares issued by the Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited. Annual Listing fees as prescribed have been paid to both the stock exchanges for the 
year 2018-19.

 

  Address: The National Stock Exchange Limited,
  Exchange Plaza,
  Bandra Kurla Complex,
  Bandra (E),
  MUMBAI - 400 051

  

  Address: BSE Limited,
  P.J. Towers,
  Dalal Street,
  Fort,
  Mumbai – 400 001

 - The Non Convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed with 
BSE Limited. Annual Listing fees as prescribed have been paid to BSE Limited. 

 Bombay Stock Exchange: 952052
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 With effect from 20th August, 2000, the Equity Shares of the Company are to be traded compulsorily in 
Dematerialised form. 99.19 % of the paid-up Equity Capital has been dematerialised as on 31st March, 2018. 

 The Company has entered into agreements with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for this purpose and the equity shares of the Company have 
been admitted as an ‘eligible security’ into the Depository System. 

- INE289B01019 

 ISIN Number for NCD - INE289B07024 

 Subject to approval by the Shareholders, dividend warrants/NECS advice will be posted to eligible members 
within the time limit permissible under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Dividend warrants/ NECS advice in respect of shares held in Demat form are posted to the beneficial owners to 
their addresses as per the information furnished by the NSDL & CDSL as on the date of Book Closure. Dividend 
will be paid on or after 13rd August, 2018 (Monday)

 Monthly high & low Index Quotes and Volume traded in BSE.

MONTH (`) QUOTE (`)
High High

April, 2017 29974.24 29319.1 518.6 402.6
May, 2017 31159.4 29858.8 572.55 505.85
June, 2017 31311.57 30834.32 615.85 533
July, 2017 32514.94 31209.79 570.8 512.2
August, 2017 32575.17 31213.59 537.7 483.9
September, 2017 32423.76 31159.81 550.35 501.25
October, 2017 33266.16 31497.38 529.85 484.05
November, 2017 33731.19 32760.44 483.5 419.5
December, 2017 34056.83 32597.18 468.65 404.2
January, 2018 36283.25  33793.38 471.15 422.55
February, 2018 35906.66 33703.59 423.1 388.2
March, 2018 34046.94 32596.54 396.35 347.25

 Monthly high & low Index Quotes and Volume traded in NSE.

MONTH `) QUOTE (`)
High High

April, 2017 9351.85 9103.50 518.65 404.40
May, 2017 9624.55 9285.30 575.00 502.90
June, 2017 9675.10 9491.25 616.05 534.14
July, 2017 10077.10 9613.30 569.65 510.95
August, 2017 10114.65 9710.80 538.70 475.20
September, 2017 10153.10 9735.75 550.00 500.15
October, 2017 10363.65 9859.50 528.60 482.50
November, 2017 10452.50 10118.05 483.25 418.90
December, 2017 10531.50 10044.10 468.05 403.15
January, 2018 11130.4 10435.55 470.7 421.75
February, 2018 11016.9 10360.4 423.95 388.6
March, 2018 10458.35 9998.05 397.25 346.7
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st

DESCRIPTION HOLDER (S) HOLDING (S)

FOLIOS % SHARES %

Upto 5000 51388 91.61 5382058 9.99

5001 – 10000 2425 4.32 1937207 3.60

10001 – 20000 1133 2.02 1717009 3.19

20001 – 30000 392 0.70 1004888 1.87

30001 – 40000 169 0.30 618453 1.15

40001 – 50000 135 0.24 634687 1.18

50001 - 100000 242 0.43 1775395 3.30

More than 100000 & Above 212 0.83 40781369 75.73

TOTAL

st

Sr. No. Cases Shares

BANKS 4 62129 0.12

2 CLEARING MEMBERS 149 197763 0.37

FOREIGN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR - - -

4 FOREIGN NATIONALS 1 200 0.00

5 FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS 27 1617197 3.00

H U F 1241 874688 1.62

INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 3050250 5.67

8 BODIES CORPORATES 789 4775423 8.86

MUTUAL FUNDS 9 3430910 6.37

NBFC 11 21732 0.04

NON RESIDENT INDIANS 860 512917 0.95

NRI NON-REPATRIATION 335 173480 0.322

PROMOTER COMPANIES 5 22701128 42.16

RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 52646 16290594 30.25

TRUSTS 11 36253 0.07

IEPF 1 106402 0.20

Shri S. Sridharan

 Senior Vice President & Company Secretary

 Not Applicable.

Not Applicable

14. There are no shares lying under Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account and hence the Company 
does not have any Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account.
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 Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, 

 Financial District, 

 Hyderabad-500032

 Tel No. +91 40 67162222

 Fax No. +91 40 23420814

 Email: einward.ris@karvy.com

 24-b,Raja Bahadur Mansion,

 Ground Floor, Ambalal Doshi Marg,

 Behind BSE, Fort, Mumbai-400023.

 Tel No. +91 226623 5454/412/427

 All the transfers are processed by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents namely, M/s Karvy Computershare 
Private Limited and approved by the Committee constituted for the said purpose which meets on a weekly basis.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

In terms of the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company, which remain unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 7 years from the date on which it 

established by the Central Government pursuant to Section 125(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company sends 

to IEPF. Despite such reminders, there are few shareholders who have not claimed their dividends.

The due date for transfer of unclaimed dividend pertaining to year 2010-11 is September, 2018. 

Members of the Company can claim the unpaid dividend, if any, from the Company before the date of transfer to 
IEPF as mentioned above.

BANK ACCOUNT PARTICULARS

The Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to furnish their latest bank account number/ particulars 
(comprising 15 digits or otherwise, as the case may be), directly to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for 
incorporation of the same on the dividend warrants. 

DIVIDEND PAYMENT THROUGH NECS

The dividend warrants in respect of the shares held in electronic/ demat mode as of the date of Book Closure would 

particulars (comprising 15 digits or otherwise, as the case may be), subject to availability of NECS facility at such 

NOMINATION

Shareholders of the Company holding physical shares in single name are requested to nominate a person of their 
choice by submitting the prescribed nomination form i.e., Form SH-13, in duplicate, to the Company or to its 
Registrars & Share Transfer Agents. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to contact 
their Depository Participant. 

PUBLICATION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
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DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

of the Company. The same is available on the website of the Company.

As Managing Director & CEO of GIC Housing Finance Ltd., and as required under SEBI Listing Regulations of the Stock 
Exchanges in India, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management personnel of the Company 

         Sd/-
Place : Mumbai      
Date : 24.04.2018   

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
We, S. Sridharan, Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary (CFO) and S. Gopakumar, Managing Director & CEO, certify 
that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31/3/2018 and that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year ended 31/3/2018, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct, except the 
fraudulent transactions if any as reported to the Board in individual loans.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design and operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps taken or proposed to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

Sd/-          Sd/-

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2018   
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To

The Members,

GIC Housing Finance Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by GIC Housing Finance Limited (“the 
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2018, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said 
Company with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations 
made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 
46 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

 For 
 Company Secretaries

Partner
FCS No. 5533
CP No. 3662

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2018
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To the Members of GIC Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

C N K & Associates LLP

 Manish Sampat

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

C N K & Associates LLP

 Manish Sampat
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

Auditor’s Responsibility

ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GIC HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
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ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GIC HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Opinion

C N K & Associates LLP

 Manish Sampat
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To

Ref: - Report under Housing Finance Companies - Auditor’s Report (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016

Management’s Responsibility

Auditors’ Responsibility

NHB COMPLIANCE REPORT
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Conclusion

Restriction of use

C N K & Associates LLP

 Manish Sampat
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BALANCE SHEET 
`

As at  
31.03.2018

 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

 5,388 
 93,636 
 99,024 

 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 7,65,122 

 31,152 
 2,580 

 7,98,854 
 CURRENT LIABILITIES

6  89,286 

 4 
 615 

 1,43,999 
 3,090 

 596 
 2,37,590 

 TOTAL  11,35,468 
II. ASSETS
 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 207 
 - 

 207 
 2,647 
 1,769 
 4,416 

 LOANS
 10,75,186 

 48,320 
 11,23,506 

 CURRENT ASSETS
 1,269 
 5,735 

 335 
 7,339 

 TOTAL  11,35,468 
Significant Accounting Policies 1 
Notes forming part of Accounts 24 

CNK & Associates LLP

Manish Sampat  Alice G. Vaidyan  S. Gopakumar 

S. Sridharan
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CNK & Associates LLP

Manish Sampat  Alice G. Vaidyan  S. Gopakumar 

S. Sridharan

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
`

 For the year ended 
31.03.2018

 

REVENUE:

 1,09,920 

 2,717 

 203 

Total Revenue  1,12,840 

EXPENDITURE:

 71,276 

 2,900 

 64 

 5,285 

 6,132 

Total Expenditure  85,657 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  27,183 

Less: Tax Expense

 9,450 

 (710)

PROFIT AFTER TAX  18,443 

` 34.25

34.25

Notes forming part of Accounts
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`

For the year ended 
31.03.2018

 

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities :

27,183 

 Adjustments For :

64 

6,132 

(1,09,920)

71,276 

0 

(196)

(5,461)

 Adjustments For :

433 

(15)

(24)

(136)

(347)

42 

115

(5,393)

 Adjustments For :

(1,95,818)

(2,01,211)

1,09,977 

(71,277)

(9,617)

 Net Cash Generated From Operating Activity (A) (1,72,128)

B Cash Flow From Investment Activities

(48)

7 6 

(7,60,238)

7,60,434 

 Net Cash Generated From Investing Activity (B) 155 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
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`

For the year ended 
31.03.2018

 

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities

2,79,771 

(1,04,597)

6,06,972 

(6,07,424)

(2,693)

(548)

 Net Cash Generated From Financing Activity (C) 1,71,481 

 Net Increase/(Decrease) of Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (492)

5,997 

5,505 

 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

83 

188 

5,109 

125 

5,505 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

CNK & Associates LLP

Manish Sampat  Alice G. Vaidyan  S. Gopakumar 

S. Sridharan
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

NOTE 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

i. :

 

ii. Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Statements:

iii. Use of Estimates:

1. REVENUE RECOGNITION: 

 a) INCOME ON LOANS:

 b) INVESTMENT INCOME :
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT:

3. CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 

` 

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND AMORTIZATION:

6. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

7. INVESTMENTS:

8. PROVISIONING FOR LOANS AND INVESTMENTS:

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

 

  

  

10. SEGMENT REPORTING:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

11. LEASES: 

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

13. TAXATION: 

14.  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES: 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 2 `

SHARE CAPITAL As at  
31.03.2018

 

AUTHORISED CAPITAL :

` 15,000 
`

15,000 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP:

` 5,385 

`
3 

TOTAL 5,388 

Note 2.1:

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding: 

As at 31.03.2018
Particulars No of Shares Amount  

(` in Lakhs)
No of Shares Amount  

(` in Lakhs)
5,38,51,066 5,385 

- - 
- - 

5,38,51,066 5,385 

Note 2.2:

Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares

`

Note 2.3: 

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in Company `

As at 31.03.2018
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding  No. of Shares 

held
% of Holding  

82,18,802 15.26 
45,94,204 8.53 
39,56,000 7.35 
30,50,250 5.66 
29,75,024 5.52 
29,57,098 5.49 

Note 2.4 : The Company has forfeited 53,800 Equity Shares on which amount originally paid up is ` 2,69,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 3 `

RESERVES AND SURPLUS As at  
31.03.2018

 

SECURITIES PREMIUM :

11,699

-

11,699

SPECIAL RESERVE :

456

-

456

34,308

5,190

39,498

GENERAL RESERVE :

28,727

9,680

-

38,407 28,727 

SURPLUS IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

3,244 6 

18,443

21,687 

9,680

5,190

2,693

548

3,576

TOTAL 93,636

Note 3.1 :

` `
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE - 4 `

LONG TERM BORROWINGS As at 31.03.2018
Non Current Current

Secured :
-   4,500 

5,01,849 1,06,245 
8,000 1,000 

2,55,273 32,254 
Security :

    
7,65,122 1,43,999 6,48,161 85,785 

Note- 4.1:

The details of Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures (NCD) are as under: `

Description - Current Year Date of 
Redemption

Rate of Interest Earliest Put/ Call 
Option Date

As at  
31st MARCH 2018

Non Current:-

`

 

Non Current:-

`

Note -4.2:

`

Description As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Banks  
ROI 7.70% - 

8.45%

Insurance Companies National 
Housing Bank 

ROI 4.86%  
to 9.15%

 

 
ROI 7.75% ROI- 7.80%   

Non - Current: 

2,50,500 1,000 1,750 75,903 
1,91,866 -   1,750 69,338 

45,558 -   1,750 68,158 
13,925 -   1,750 41,874 

Total 5,01,849 1,000 7,000 2,55,273 



28th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 5 `

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS As at  
31.03.2018

 

332 

225 

Other Provisions:

29,616 

979 

TOTAL  31,152 

NOTE 6 `

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS As at  
31.03.2018

 

UNSECURED LOANS :

 -   

 90,000 

 714 

 89,286 

TOTAL  89,286 

NOTE 7 `

TRADE PAYABLES As at  
31.03.2018

 

Trade Payables (For Expenses)

 4 

 615 

TOTAL  619 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 8 `

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at  
31.03.2018

 

Other Liabilities: (Borrowings)
Current maturities of Secured Long Term Borrowings

1,06,245 
32,254 
1,000 

(Refer Note 8.1) 4,500 
Sub Total 1,43,999 

Other Liabilities: (Others)
365 
125 

2,497 
-   0 

103 66
Sub Total 3,090 
TOTAL 1,47,089 

Note 8.1 :

Note 8.2 :

` `

NOTE 9 `

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS As at  
31.03.2018

 

 31 
 143 

Other Provisions:
 422 

 -   
-
-

TOTAL  596 

Note 9.1 :

`  
` ` `

` `
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 10a `
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at  
1.04.2017

Additions Deductions/
Adjustments

As at  
31.03.2018

 For the 
year

Deductions/
Adjustments

As at  
31.03.2018

As at  
31.03.2018

 

Buildings  
(Refer note 10.1)

263 183 80 

212 6 195 7 

144 33 11 

89 79 10 

Computers 523 477 46 

Vehicles 88 45 43 

Current Year 1,309 47 37 1,319 1,079 64 31 1,112 207 230 

Previous Year

NOTE 10b

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

As at  
1.04.2017

Additions Deductions/
Adjustments

As at  
31.03.2018

 For the 
year

Deductions/
Adjustments

As at  
31.03.2018

As at  
31.03.2018

 

Application Software 292 292 -   

0 

Current Year

(292) -   

TOTAL I +II C.Y. 1,601 47 37 1,611 1,371 64 31 1,404 207 230 

TOTAL I +II P.Y.

Note 10.1 :

`
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 11 `

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Face Value `  No. As at  
31.03.2018

 

(1) NON-TRADE INVESTMENTS (UNQUOTED)

Equity Shares  1,697 

Redeemable Preference Shares  950 
(Refer Note 11.1 below)
TOTAL  2,647 

Note 11.1 : `

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Face Value ` No. As at  
31.03.2018

 

(a) Equity shares :
29 

1,666 
1 

0.50 
0.50 

 Total Equity Shares 1,697 
(b) Redeemable Preferance Shares :

50 
200 
100 

200 
200 
200 

 Total Redeemable Preferance Shares 950 
(c) - 

- 
2,647 

(d) `  
`

NOTE 12 `

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) As at  
31.03.2018

 

(Refer Point no.9 of Note no.24 (Notes forming part of Accounts)
11,222 
13,802 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (2,580)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 13 `

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As at  
31.03.2018

 

(a) Security Deposits  258 

(b) Advances Recoverable in cash or kind
 924 

(c) Advance tax and tax deducted at source  573 

(d) Prepaid Expenses  14 
TOTAL  1,769 

NOTE 14 `

LOANS : As at  
31.03.2018

 

LOANS :

A NON CURRENT :

10,74,851 

335 

TOTAL (A) 10,75,186 

B CURRENT (Repayable within one year)

48,320 

-   

TOTAL (B) 48,320 

TOTAL (A)+(B) 11,23,506 9,27,689 

NOTE 15 `

TRADE RECEIVABLES As at  
31.03.2018

 

1,188 
(Secured, considered good)

 81 
(Secured, considered good)
TOTAL 1,269 



28th ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 16 `

CASH AND BANK BALANCES As at  
31.03.2018

 

Cash and cash equivalents :

5,109
125

5,234 
83 

188 
Other Bank Balances 230 

 

TOTAL 5,735 

NOTE 17 `

SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As at  
31.03.2018

 

 41 
 173 
 11 
 6  6 

 104 
TOTAL  335 

NOTE 18 `

INTEREST INCOME Year Ended  
31.03.2018

 

 1,09,920 
TOTAL  1,09,920 

NOTE 19 `

OTHER FINANCIAL SERVICES Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 

2,552
 165 

TOTAL  2,717 

NOTE 20 `

OTHER INCOME : Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 

 6 

 196 

 1  2 
TOTAL  203  153 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 21 `

FINANCE COST Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 

INTEREST EXPENSES :  

64,760 

389 

355 

5,772 

TOTAL 71,276 

NOTE 22 `

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES : Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 

2,294 

379 

227 

TOTAL 2,900 

NOTE 23 `

OTHER EXPENSES Year Ended 
31.03.2018

 

703 
7 

Repairs and Maintenance :
25 

353 
378 
121 
220 
85 
82 
99 

3,233 
12 
3 

316 

12 
4 

10 
26 

TOTAL 5,285 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

NOTE 24

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

1. Housing Loans are secured by:

2. Contingent Liabilities:

` `

  i) `

`

  ii) `

`

  iii) `

`

3. ` `

4. 

 :

` ` 
` `

 :

 

` `
 

 

` `
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

5. Disclosure in respect of Gratuity liability:

   (`

Particulars
 

Gratuity (Funded)
Year Ended 
31.03.2018

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan
 
Changes in the present value of the obligation 

6

Reconciliation of Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance 
sheet during the year ended March 31, 2018

Changes in the Fair Value of Assets

6

6 
Actuarial Assumptions

 ` ` 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 Gratuity:
` 

Particulars 2017-18

762

393

(369)

6. Segment Reporting:

7. Leases:

` ` 

`  `

` ` 

 ` `

8. Earnings Per Share:

Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2018

` 18,443

5,38,51,066

` 10

` 34.25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

9. Deferred tax Assets:

` ` 

`

Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Assets

10,497

127

129

40

47

382

Total 11,222

Deferred Tax Liability

13,802

Total 13,802

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) (net) (2,580)

10. Details of Movement in Provisions:
`

Particulars Opening Provision made 
during the year

Provision Reversed/
Adjusted during the 

year

Closing  
as on 

31.03.2018

8,259 2,716 24,963

589 -- 5,033

-- -- 42

-- -- 979

9,450 -- 45,741

11. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

12. Disclosure as required by National Housing Bank (NHB):

th

 I. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR): 

Sr.  
No.

Particulars
Year Ended 
31.03.2018

16.17
16.17

-
-
-

` `

 II. Reserve fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987:
`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Balance at the beginning of the year
456

34,308

Total (a + b) 34,764

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

-
5,190

-

-

Balance at the end of the year
456

39,498

Total (a + b) 39,954
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 III. Investments:
` 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Value of Investments

2,647

-

979

-

1,668

-

  Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on investments
`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Value of Investments

979

-

year
-

979

 IV. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 V. Asset Liability Management: 

  Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018:
(`

Particulars Liabilities Assets

Deposits Borrowings 
from banks

Market 
Borrowings

Foreign 
currency 
Liabilities

Advances* Investments* Foreign 
currency 

Assets

Over one month

Total - 9,04,621 93,786 - 10,93,468 1,668 -

  * 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

  Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017:

(` 

Particulars Liabilities Assets

Deposits Borrowings 
from banks

Market 
Borrowings

Foreign 
currency 
Liabilities

Advances* Investments* Foreign 
currency 

Assets

Over one month

Total - 7,39,847 83,838 - 9,03,782 1,668 -

  * 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 VI. Exposure to Real Estate Sector:
 (` 

Sr. 
No.

Category Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Direct Exposure

a) Residential Mortgages

`
`

4,85,777
6,36,978

335

b) Commercial Real Estate

416
-

c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and 
other Securitised Exposures

-
-

Indirect Exposure

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 VII. Exposure to Capital Market:
 (`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Year Ended 
31.03.2018

1,668

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total Exposure to Capital Market 1,668

 VIII. 

 IX. 

 X. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 XI. Related Party Transactions: (As per AS 18- Related Party disclosures)

  Key Management Personnel:

Shri S. Gopakumar - Managing Director & CEO:
    (` 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

25

-

-

2

1

3

Total 31

-

the period
-

Shri S. Sridharan - Sr. Vice President, Company Secretary & CFO:
(`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

6

Total 30

the period
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 XII. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

Sr.
No.

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2018

ICRA CRISIL

[ICRA]AA+ stable CRISIL AA+ stable

[ICRA]AA+ stable CRISIL AA+ stable

[ICRA]A1+ NIL

[ICRA]A1+ CRISIL A1+

 XIII. Remuneration to Directors: 

`
`

 (`

Name of the Directors Year Ended 31.03.2018

Sitting Fees Commission Others

3.90 - -

1.20 - -

2.10 - -

1.50 - -

1.50 - -

1.50 - -

0.30 - -

TOTAL 12.00 - -

 XIV. 

 XV. 

 XVI. Provisions and Contingencies charged during the year:
`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

-

9,450

5,543

589

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

  Break up Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon
`

Sr.
No.

Particulars Housing Non Housing

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

Year Ended
31.03.2018

Standard Asset

9,25,888 1,70,291

3,473 1,602

Sub – Standard Asset

7,220 3,452

5,620 2,688

Doubtful Assets-Category – I

4,372 1,553

4,372 1,553

Doubtful Asset – Category II

2,530 618

2,530 618

Doubtful Asset – Category III

6,317 382

6,317 382

Loss Assets

833 50

833 50

TOTAL

9,47,160 1,76,346

23,145 6,893

 XVII. Concentration of Public Deposits:  

 XVIII. Concentration of Loans & Advances:
 (`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

3,844

0.34%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 XIX. Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure):
 (`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

4,000

0.35%

 XX. Concentration of NPAs:
(`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

1,128

 XXI. Sector-wise NPAs:

Sr. 
No.

Sector Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that sector

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

i) Housing Loans

2.24%

-

-

-

ii) Non – Housing Loans

3.40%

-

0.21%

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

 XXII. Movement of NPAs:
` 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

0.21%

22,070

28,903

23,646

27,327

2,650

20,644

20,930

2,364

19,420

8,259

* -

2,716

24,963

  *

 XXIII.  

    

 XXIV. Disclosure of Complaints:

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

6

70

40

36 6

  

himashwetha.j
Highlight

himashwetha.j
Highlight
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended as at 31st March, 2018

13. 

(`

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2018

4

-

-

-

-

14. 

15. 

CNK & Associates LLP

Manish Sampat  Alice G. Vaidyan  S. Gopakumar 

S. Sridharan

th
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
Achievements in 2017-18

` `

` `

`

Loan approvals during the year

Capital Adequacy

Loan disbursements during the year

Housing Loans

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
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`

Comparative Statement

FIVE YEARS AT A GLANCE

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

`
60

`

` `

62492

73274

87637

100174

112840

0
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NOTES



Inauguration of Nellore Branch

Inauguration of Hubli Branch




